

ORDINANCE NO. 24-621

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUNKER HILL VILLAGE, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 14, SUBDIVISION, OF THE CITY'S CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING SECTION 14-1, DEFINITIONS, SECTION 14-2, GENERAL PROVISIONS, SECTION 14-3, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, SECTION 14-5, FINAL PLAT, SECTION 14-6, FEES, SECTION 14-11, APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT; REMOVING SECTION 14-4, PRELIMINARY PLAT AND ACCOMPANYING DATA, TO REMOVE REFERENCES TO THE PRELIMINARY PLAT PROCESS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF \$2,000.00 FOR EACH VIOLATION HEREOF WITH EACH DAY CONSTITUTING A SEPARATE VIOLATION; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.

* * * * *

WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature adopted legislation providing that subdivision plats are required to be approved within a specific time frame; and

WHEREAS, other matters in the City's Subdivision Regulations need to be changed or updated; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds it to be in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of its citizens that the City's Subdivision Ordinance be amended to address the changes by the Texas Legislature contained herein; and

WHEREAS, the City's Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed these proposed changes as required by law and recommends approval.

NOW, THEREFORE

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUNKER HILL VILLAGE, TEXAS:

Section 1. The facts and matters contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found to be true and correct.

Section 2. Section 14-1, Definitions, of Chapter 14, Subdivisions, of the City's Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removing language struckthrough below to read as follows:

“Sec. 14-1. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. Definitions not expressly prescribed herein are to be construed in accordance with customary usage in municipal planning and engineering practices or as set out in the zoning ordinance of the city.

Block shall mean an identified tract or parcel of land established within a subdivision surrounded by a street or a combination of streets and other physical features and which may be further subdivided into individual lots or reserves.

Building official shall mean the person authorized by the city as the city's building official, or his duly authorized representative.

Commission shall mean the planning and zoning commission of the city.

Comprehensive plan shall mean the city's comprehensive zoning ordinance.

Easement shall mean an area intended for restricted use on private property upon which a person or public or private entity has the right to remove and keep removed all or part of buildings, fences, trees, shrubs and other improvements or growths which in any way endanger or interfere with the construction, maintenance or operation of any of their respective utilities, drainage, access or other authorized systems or facilities located within any such easement. Any such person or public or private entity owning an easement shall at all times have the right of unobstructed ingress and egress to and from and upon the easement for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining and adding to or removing all or part of their respective systems or facilities without the necessity at any time of procuring the permission of anyone.

Final plat means a complete and exact subdivision plan prepared in conformity with the provisions of this chapter and in a manner suitable for recording with the county clerk.

Lot shall mean a physically undivided tract or parcel of land having frontage on a public street or approved private street and which is, or in the future may be, offered for sale, conveyance, transfer or improvements; which is designated as a distinct and separate tract; and which is identified by a tract or lot number or symbol on a duly approved subdivision plat that has been properly recorded.

Natural channel means a discernible natural water drainage channel of discrete width as opposed to general puddling over a substantially uniform surface.

~~*Preliminary plat* means the map, drawing, or chart on which a subdivider's plan of subdivision is initially presented to the planning and zoning commission.~~

Radial lot shall mean a lot having a front property line that includes the shape of a curve or is positioned at the end of a dead end street (having no cul-de-sac bulb), and having side property lines that intersect each other when projected beyond the rear or front line of the lot.

Secretary of the planning and zoning commission shall mean the city secretary of the city.

Street, private shall mean a roadway owned and maintained by a private individual or individuals, organization, or company rather than by the city or other government entity and provides vehicular access to adjacent private land.

Subdivider or developer means any owner of land, or his authorized agent or representative, proposing to divide or dividing the same or any part thereof in a manner constituting a subdivision of land under the provisions of this chapter.

Subdivision means a division of any tract of land situated within the corporate limits of the city, in two (2) or more parts for the purpose of laying out any subdivision of any tract of land, or for laying out suburban lots or building lots, or any lots, and which may or may not include streets, alleys, or other portions intended for public use or the use by purchasers or owners of lots fronting thereon or adjacent thereto. "Subdivision" includes resubdivision, meaning any change in the division of an existing subdivision or any change of lot size therein, or the relocation of any street, alley, or other portions intended for public use or the use by purchasers or owners of lots fronting thereon or adjacent thereto.

Title report/city planning letter shall mean a certificate prepared and executed by a title company authorized to do business in the state or an attorney licensed in the state describing all encumbrances of record that affect the property, together with all deeds recorded from and after the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived. Such certificate shall include all property included within the platted area, and such certificate shall not have been executed more than thirty (30) days prior to submission of such certificate to the commission."

Section 3. Section 14-2, General Provisions, of Chapter 14, Subdivisions, of the City's Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removing language struckthrough below to read as follows:

"Sec. 14-2. General Provisions.

- (a) *Authority.* This chapter and the rules and regulations set forth herein governing plats and the subdivision of land are adopted pursuant to the authority granted in ~~V.T.C.A.~~ Texas Local Government Code § 212.002.
- (b) *Purpose.* The purpose of this chapter and the rules and regulations set forth herein is twofold:
 - (1) To promote the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the city and its inhabitants; and
 - (2) To promote the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the city.
- (c) *Applicability.* This chapter shall apply to all subdivisions of land within the corporate limits of the city.
- (d) *Review by building official.* Prior to the time the plat of a proposed subdivision is considered by the planning and zoning commission and the city council, it shall be reviewed by the building official for compliance with the code and he shall make such recommendations regarding same to such bodies as he deems necessary or appropriate.
- (e) *Dual plat approval required.* The final plat of a subdivision must be approved for recommendation to the city council by the planning and zoning commission and approved by the city council in the sequence and in the manner herein prescribed."

Section 4. Section 14-3, Special Provisions, of Chapter 14, Subdivisions, of the City's Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removing language struckthrough and adding thereto the language underscored below to read as follows:

“Sec. 14-3. Special provisions.

- (a) *Plat approval required.* It shall be unlawful for any person to subdivide any tract, lot or parcel of land within the corporate limits of the city unless and until ~~a preliminary plat and~~ a final plat of such subdivision ~~have~~ has been approved in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. Unless and until ~~a preliminary plat and~~ a final plat of a subdivision ~~have~~ has been approved in the manner provided for herein by the planning and zoning commission and the city council, such final plat has been duly recorded in the office of the county clerk, and the subdivider has complied with the provisions of section 14-8, it shall be unlawful:
- (1) For any person to construct or cause to be constructed any street, sidewalk, utility facility, building, structure, or other improvement on any lot, tract, or parcel of land within such subdivision; and
 - (2) For any officer or employee of the city to issue any permit for the construction or repair of any such improvements, or any aspect thereof, or to serve or connect any such lot, tract, or parcel of land, or any parts thereof, with any public utilities, including water and sanitary sewer, owned, distributed, or controlled by the city.
- (b) *Improvements required.* All of the public improvements required under the provisions of this chapter and those which in the judgment of the planning and zoning commission are necessary for the adequate provision of streets, drainage, utilities, and municipal services and facilities to the subdivision shall be constructed at the sole expense of the subdivider.
- (c) *Limitations on city participation.* The city shall not repair, maintain, install or provide any streets, other public improvements or public utility services within a subdivision for which a final plat has not been duly approved and filed of record in the manner required by the provisions hereof, or in which the standards contained or referred to herein have not been complied with in full.
- (d) *Exceptions.* The provisions of this chapter shall not be construed to prohibit the issuance of permits for construction on any lot upon which a residential building exists and was in existence prior to June 8, 1982, the last recorded conveyance of which was prior to June 8, 1982, and was by a metes and bounds description; or for any lot in a subdivision the plat of which was validly recorded in the office of the county clerk, in accordance with applicable law prior to June 8, 1982; or for any lot in an unrecorded subdivision which was owned as a separate parcel of land prior to April 29, 1955, the date of adoption of the city's first zoning ordinance.”

Section 5. Section 14-1, Preliminary Plat and Accompanying Data, of Chapter 14, Subdivisions, of the City’s Code of Ordinances is hereby removed by removing language struckthrough below as follows:

“Sec. 14.4. Preliminary plat and accompany data.

- (a) ~~*Preliminary conference.* Prior to the official filing of a preliminary plat, the subdivider or his duly authorized representative shall consult with the city staff and receive its comments and advice regarding procedures, specifications, and standards required by the city for subdivision plat approval. Refer to section 4-4 development, building and construction, mandatory pre-development meetings. If requested in writing, the planning and zoning commission will place, for discussion purposes only, an item on its agenda regarding the proposed subdivision in order to assist a subdivider on matters affecting a proposed subdivision.~~
- (b) ~~*Preparation and filing of preliminary plat.* The subdivider shall cause to be prepared a preliminary plat meeting the requirements hereof and file at least three (3) copies of the same with the city secretary at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date formal application for the preliminary plat approval is made to the planning and zoning commission.~~
- (c) ~~*Formal application.* Formal application for preliminary plat approval shall be made by the subdivider in writing to the commission at an official meeting of the commission.~~
- (d) ~~*Form and content.* The preliminary plat shall show the following:~~
 - (1) ~~Names and addresses of the subdivider and record owner of the parcel to be subdivided.~~
 - (2) ~~The name of the person who prepared the plat.~~
 - (3) ~~Proposed name of the subdivision, which shall not have the same spelling as or be pronounced similar to any other subdivision in the Cities of Bunker Hill Village, Hedwig Village, Hilshire Village, Hunters Creek Village, Piney Point Village, and Spring Valley, Texas.~~
 - (4) ~~The legal description, by metes and bounds, of the property proposed to be subdivided, including the name of the county, survey and abstract number, together with reference to at least one established corner of a nearby recorded subdivision or the nearest public street right of way intersection.~~
 - (5) ~~The computed acreage of the subdivision and total number of lots, blocks and reserves.~~
 - (6) ~~Date of preparation, scale of plat, and north arrow. The scale shall be one inch equals one hundred (100) feet minimum, unless otherwise approved.~~
 - (7) ~~A number or letter to identify each lot or site.~~

- ~~(8) Proposed public easements for drainage, streets, and utilities.~~
 - ~~(9) A vicinity map, preferably in the upper right corner of the plat, to show the subdivision in relation to well known streets, railroads, and watercourses in all directions for a distance of at least one mile.~~
 - ~~(10) The proposed layout of the subdivision, showing streets, blocks, lots, alleys, easements, and other features within the plat boundary with principal dimensions.~~
 - ~~(11) The location and identification of all tracts not designated as lots within the boundaries of the plat. Such tracts, if not restricted for specific uses, shall be identified as "unrestricted reserve." "Restricted reserves" shall be indicated on the plat and shall be designated as single family residential, utility, church, park or recreational, or school.~~
 - ~~(12) The adjacent areas outside the plat boundaries shall be identified indicating the name of adjacent subdivisions (including recording information), the names of the recorded owners of adjacent parcels of land, churches, schools, parks, bayous and drainage ways, acreage and all existing streets, easements, pipelines and other restricted uses;~~
 - ~~(13) The names of all existing and proposed streets located within the plat boundaries or immediately adjacent thereto.~~
- ~~(e) *Processing of preliminary plat.*~~
- ~~(1) The planning and zoning commission will review the preliminary plat to ensure that it is in conformity with all rules, regulations, and ordinances of the city including, but not limited to, this chapter, the city's zoning ordinance, zoning districts, master plan, comprehensive plan, major thoroughfare plan, construction standards, land uses plan, drainage plan, and flood damage prevention ordinance.~~
 - ~~(2) Within forty five (45) days after the preliminary plat is formally filed, the commission shall conditionally approve or disapprove such plat or conditionally approve it with modifications. The commission shall within ten (10) days notify the applicant in writing of the action taken and if the action is one of disapproval, shall also state in writing the reason for such action and requirements to bring such plat into compliance with such ordinance or ordinances, giving specific sections and references to sections of ordinances or the comprehensive plan of the city for the subdivider's reference.~~
 - ~~(3) Conditional approval of a preliminary plat by the commission shall be deemed an expression of approval of the layout submitted on the preliminary plat as a guide to the approval of the layout of streets, water, sewer, and other required improvements and utilities and to the preparation of the final or record plat.~~

- (4) ~~Conditional approval of the preliminary plat shall only be effective for six (6) months, unless reviewed by the commission in the light of new or significant information which would necessitate a revision of the preliminary plat. If, prior to approval of the final plat, the commission determines that changes are necessary in such preliminary plat, it shall inform the subdivider in writing of the necessary changes in such preliminary plat to bring it into conformity with such ordinances.~~
- (5) ~~Conditional approval of a preliminary plat shall not constitute automatic approval of the final plat.~~
- (6) ~~Final approval for preliminary plats are not required to be approved by the city council.”~~

Section 6. Section 14-5, Final Plat, of Chapter 14, Subdivisions, of the City’s Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removal of language struckthrough and adding thereto the language underscored below to read as follows:

“Sec. 14-5. Final Plat.

(a) Mandatory Pre-Development Meeting. In accordance with Section 4-4, Mandatory Pre-development Meeting, of Chapter 4, Development, Building and Construction, a mandatory pre-development meeting is required for all new construction, reconstruction, and/or expansion/addition projects. Prior to the official filing of a final plat, the subdivider or his duly authorized representative shall consult with the city staff and receive its comments and advice regarding procedures, specifications, and standards required by the city for subdivision plat approval. If requested in writing, the planning and zoning commission will place, for discussion purposes only, an item on its agenda regarding the proposed subdivision in order to assist a subdivider on matters affecting a proposed subdivision.

(a b) *Form; content.*

- (1) The final plat and accompanying data shall conform to ~~the preliminary plat and other required data as conditionally approved by the planning and zoning commission~~ all required data, incorporating any and all changes, modifications, alterations, corrections, and conditions as set out in the mandatory pre-development meeting, incorporating any and all changes, modifications, alterations, corrections, and conditions as set out in subsequent commission meetings, letters of preliminary approval from the commission and must show easements for all utilities and drainage.
- (2) The plat shall be drawn to a scale of one inch equals one hundred (100) feet minimum, unless otherwise approved by the commission. The final plat shall be drawn on Mylar twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches.

- (3) The final plat shall be submitted in such reasonable number as is required by the commission ~~and shall contain all of the features required for preliminary plats.~~
- (4) All final plats shall incorporate all of the provisions and requirements below ~~relating to preliminary plats~~ and, where appropriate, reflect any conditions and requirements of final approval previously imposed by the commission; ~~together with the following additional requirements:-~~
- a. The final plat shall be drawn with black lines and image and shall be suitable for the reproduction of direct positive prints and reproductions; The applicant will provide an eleven (11) by seventeen (17) print or an electronic version of the completed and signed plat.
 - b. All engineering and surveying data shall be shown on the final plat sufficient to locate all of the features of the plat on the ground. This data shall include, but not be limited to, full dimensions along all boundaries of the plat, street and alley rights-of-way, easements and drainage ways, gullies, creeks and bayous, together with the location of the high bank of such drainage ways and water courses, lots, blocks, reserves, out tracts or any other tracts designated separately within the plat boundaries, fee strips or any other physical features necessary to be accurately located by surveying methods. Such information shall include line dimensions, bearings of deflecting angles, radii, central angles and degree of curvature, length of curves and tangent distances, all of which are to be shown in feet and decimal fractions thereof;
 - c. The name of the current record owner and address. If the record owner is a company or corporation, the name of the responsible individual such as the president or vice president;
 - d. The name and seal of the registered professional land surveyor and/or registered professional engineer responsible for preparing the plat;
 - e. The date of submittal, and the date of submittal of each subsequent revision;
 - f. All streets and alleys within the plat or immediately adjacent thereto with street names, widths measured at right angles or radially (where curved), complete curve data (R, L, P.C., P.R.C. and P.T.) length and bearing all tangents between curves;
 - g. Easements shall be shown for drainage, streets, and utilities, and shall be defined by dimension. All principal lines shall have the bearing given and deviation from the norm indicated. The plat must provide a note stating that all existing pipelines or pipeline

easements through the subdivision have been shown or that there are no existing pipeline easements within the limits of the subdivision;

- h. All field surveys shall be accurate to, and performed in accordance with, the appropriate provisions of the current edition of the manual of practice standards for surveying in Texas, as periodically published by the Texas Society of Professional Surveyors. Linear dimensions shall be expressed in feet and decimals of a foot; angular dimensions may be shown by bearings in degrees, minutes and seconds. Curved boundaries shall be fully described and all essential information given. Circular curves shall be defined by actual length of radius and not be degree of curve;
- i. The intended use of all lots within the subdivision shall be identified on the plat.
- j. All dedication statements and certificates.
- k. Proposed name of the subdivision, which shall not have the same spelling as or be pronounced similar to any other subdivision in the Cities of Bunker Hill Village, Hedwig Village, Hilshire Village, Hunters Creek Village, Piney Point Village, and Spring Valley Village, Texas.
- l. The legal description, by metes and bounds, of the property proposed to be subdivided, including the name of the county, survey and abstract number, together with reference to at least one established corner of a nearby recorded subdivision or the nearest public street right-of-way intersection.
- m. The computed acreage of the subdivision and total number of lots, blocks and reserves.
- n. Date of preparation, scale of plat, and north arrow.
- o. A number or letter to identify each lot or site.
- p. The location and identification of all tracts not designated as lots within the boundaries of the plat. Such tracts, if not restricted for specific uses, shall be identified as “unrestricted reserve.” “Restricted reserves” shall be identified on the plat and shall be designated as single-family residential, utility, church, park or recreational, or school.
- q. The adjacent areas outside the plat boundaries shall be identified indicating the name of adjacent subdivisions (including recording information), the names of the recorded owners of adjacent parcels of land, churches, schools, parks, bayous and drainage ways, acreage and all existing streets, easements, pipelines and other restricted uses.

- (5) When filed with the commission, the final plat shall be accompanied with a full set of engineering drawings, construction plans and profile sheets, and specifications for all public improvements:
- a. *Streets, alleys, sidewalks, hike and bike paths, cross walkways and monuments, traffic control.* Two (2) copies of the proposed construction plans and profiles of all streets, alleys, sidewalks, hike and bike paths, cross walkways, monuments, and traffic control.
 - b. *Sanitary sewers.* Two (2) copies of the proposed construction plans showing the proposed locations and dimensions of sanitary sewer lines and plans and profiles of proposed sanitary sewer lines, indicating depths and grades of lines.
 - c. *Water lines.* Two (2) copies of the proposed construction plans showing contours and the location and the size of water lines and fire hydrants and plans and profiles of all proposed water lines and fire hydrants, showing size, depths, and grades of the lines.
 - d. *Storm drainage.* Two (2) copies of the proposed construction plans indicating one-foot contours. All street widths and grades and all drainage easements shall be indicated on the plans, and all points in the streets at changes of grade or where the water enters another street or storm sewer or drainage ditch together with calculations showing the anticipated stormwater flow from such subdivision.
- (6) All plans and engineering calculations shall bear the seal and signature of a registered professional engineer.
- (7) The final plat shall also include the following:
- a. A dedication to the city for the use and benefit of the public forever of all streets, alleys, easements, culverts, bridges, and other public ways delineated on such plat, ~~which shall be the same as those shown on the preliminary plat,~~ signed and acknowledged before a notary public by the owner or owners and the lien holder, if any, of the land and a complete and accurate description of the land subdivided. The dedication and acknowledgement shall be in the current form required by the county clerk for recording of the plat in the plat or map records of the county.
 - b. A statement prepared for the signature of the chairman and secretary of the planning and zoning commission and the mayor and city secretary of the city stating that the final plat has been approved, respectively, by such commission and by the city council.

- c. The certification of the surveyor responsible for surveying the subdivision area, attesting to its accuracy.
 - d. A certification by the engineer or surveyor responsible for the preparation of the final plat and supporting data, attesting to its accuracy.
- (8) The developer shall obtain a letter of no objection from each public and private utility (electric, gas, phone, cable, water, etc.) which will provide service to the subdivision, stating that utility easements are adequate to accommodate all public and private utilities, and such letters shall accompany the proposed final plat.
- (9) Title report/ city planning letter. A current title report, statement or opinion, title policy or certificate or letter from a title company authorized to do business in the state or an attorney licensed as such in the state shall be provided certifying that, within thirty (30) days prior to the date the final plat is dated and filed with the commission, a search of the appropriate records was performed covering the land proposed to be platted, and providing the following information concerning the title to the land:
- a. The date of the examination of the records;
 - b. A legal description of the property lying within the proposed subdivision, including a metes and bounds description of the boundaries of such land;
 - c. The name of the record owner of fee simple title as of the date of the examination of the records, together with the recording information of the instruments whereby such owner acquired fee simple title;
 - d. The names of all lien holders, together with the recording information and date of the instruments by which such lien holders acquired their interests;
 - e. A description of the type and boundaries of all easements and fee strips not owned by the subdivider of the property in question, together with certified copies of the instruments whereby the owner of such easements or fee strips acquired their title, and the recording information for each such instrument; and
 - f. A tax certificate from each city, county, school, utility or other governmental entity in which the land being platted is located showing that no delinquent taxes are due such entity for the property being platted.
- (c) *Processing of final plat.*
- (1) ~~As soon as practical after the subdivider is notified of the approval of the preliminary plat, he or his engineer shall submit to the~~

~~commission the final plat of the subdivision or portion thereof to be considered at an official meeting of the commission.~~

- ~~(1 2) No final plat will be considered approved unless a preliminary plat has been submitted and conditionally approved the requirement for a mandatory pre-development meeting has been met and the city's building official has reviewed the proposed subdivision for compliance with the code.~~
- ~~(3) A final plat of an approved preliminary plat or a portion thereof shall be submitted to the commission within six (6) months of the date of approval of the preliminary plat, by the commission, otherwise the preliminary plat approval of the commission shall become null and void, unless an extension of time is applied for and granted by the commission.~~
- ~~(2) The subdivider shall cause to be prepared a final plat meeting the requirements hereof and file at least three (3) copies of the same with the city secretary at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date formal application for the final plat approval is made to the planning and zoning commission.~~
- ~~(3) The planning and zoning commission will review the final plat to ensure that it is in conformity with all rules, regulations, and ordinances of the city including, but not limited to, this chapter, the city's zoning ordinance, zoning districts, master plan, comprehensive plan, major thoroughfare plan, construction standards, land uses plan, drainage plan, and flood damage prevention ordinance.~~
- ~~(4) The final plat must be acted upon by the planning and zoning commission within thirty (30) days of filing for the purpose of complying with the time limit prescribed by V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 212.009. Upon approval of a recommendation to the city council on the final plat by the planning and zoning commission, whether such approval results from action or inaction, the commission shall immediately forward such plat to the city council for its consideration. Such final plat must be acted upon by the city council within thirty (30) days of the approval of same by the planning and zoning commission for the purpose of complying with those time limits prescribed by V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 212.009. A plat shall be considered approved by the city council unless it is disapproved within such thirty day period.~~
- ~~(5) Upon conditional approval or disapproval by the planning and zoning commission, the planning and zoning commission shall provide the applicant a written statement of the conditions for the conditional approval or reasons for disapproval that clearly articulates each specific condition that is directly related to the requirements under this and other applicable chapters of the city's~~

code of ordinances. The applicant may submit to the planning and zoning commission a written response that satisfies each condition for the conditional approval or remedies each reason for disapproval provided. There is no deadline for this response from the applicant. If the applicant provides a written response, the planning and zoning commission will approve or disapprove within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of written response.

- (6) Upon approval of a recommendation to the city council on the final plat by the planning and zoning commission, whether such approval results from action or inaction, the commission shall immediately forward such plat to the city council for its consideration. Such final plat must be acted upon by the city council within thirty (30) days of the approval of same by the planning and zoning commission for the purpose of complying with those time limits prescribed by Local Government Code § 212.009. A plat shall be considered approved by the city council unless it is disapproved within such thirty-day period.”

Section 7. Section 14-6, Fees, of Chapter 14, Subdivision, of the City’s Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removal of language struckthrough below to read as follows:

“Sec. 14-6. Fees.

An applicant for approval of a ~~preliminary or~~ final subdivision plat shall pay all applicable fees as established from time to time by city council.

No action of the commission and/or the city council, with respect to the approval of a subdivision plat, shall be valid unless the required fees are paid in advance, and no refunds shall be made, notwithstanding the approval or denial of a subdivision plat by the commission and/or the city council.”

Section 8. Section 14-11, Approval of final plat, of Chapter 14, Subdivision, of the City’s Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by removal of language struckthrough and adding thereto the language underscored below to read as follows:

“Sec. 14-11. Approval of final plat Withdrawal of final plat approval.

The approval of a final plat of a subdivision by the planning and zoning commission and the council shall be invalid unless the approved plat of such subdivision is recorded in the office of the county clerk within thirty (30) days after the date of its final approval by the city. Where a plat has not been filed for record in the office of the county clerk and no public improvements have been completed or substantially completed within 12 months of the approval of the Final Plat, the Plat shall be reviewed by the Commission to determine the developer’s intent to proceed. If the Commission finds that the developer does not intend to proceed with the development, the Commission shall transmit to City Council a request to withdraw approval of the Plat. Upon receiving the recommendation of the Commission, the City Council may withdraw approval of the Plat or extend approval for up to one additional year.”

Section 9. Any person who intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine in the amount not to exceed \$2,000.00 for any violation hereof, with each day being a separate violation.

Section 10. In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Bunker Hill Village, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDAINED on this 20th day of February, 2024.

Susan B. Schwartz, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

Gerardo Barrera, City Administrator / Acting City Secretary